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Profile

Growing with evolving communications,
NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation
will celebrate its 60th anniversary.

Since its establishment in 1953, NEC Networks and
System Integration Corporation (NESIC) has expanded
its businesses from the installation of telecommunications
infrastructure to the SI and maintenance of office networks
and the service businesses, including the operation of
network systems and outsourcing. NESIC offers unique
services, including EmpoweredOffice, an office innovation
solution, taking advantage of its ability to provide a broad
range of ICT related services, from system integration to

Founded in 1953

Crossbar switching
equipment

First construction of
TV broadcasting systems

Construction of

installation and other services for diverse customers in an
integrated manner.

Leveraging the strengths it has developed over 60
years, NESIC aims to grow by revitalizing its customers’
communications and adding new value. This is the 30th year
since the Company first listed its shares. We aim to enhance
our enterprise value to become the top brand in the industry
and increase the satisfaction of all stakeholders as an entity
that contributes to society in various ways.
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Construction of satellite
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in Switzerland

The Kashima Branch
of the Radio Research
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broadcast automation
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Age of
supporting global
communications

Age of
supporting the base
of telecommunications

Nippon Electric Installation Company
founded (1953)

e Starting with the installation of switching,
broadcasting, and radio systems

e Contributing to the creation of submarine cables,
communications infrastructure in the

postwar years of recovery

systems for NHK

1970

Full-scale development of international communications
and satellite communications

* Building communications infrastructure worldwide
® Expanding the installation of broadcasting systems,

and radio communication systems

(satellite communications, microwave communications)
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

B Financial Highlights

Key points of the results
of the fiscal year under review

1 Both orders and net sales rose in all segments.

2 Income at all levels reached record highs.

3 Shareholder retumn expanded, as NESIC strengthened its earnings power.

Net sales
¥235.7 billion

15.2% increase year on year

245.0

¥ billions

241.3

¥ billions

¥ billions

2012/3 2013/3 2014/3
(Forecast)
Orders
¥241.3 billion

12.0% increase year on year

240.0

¥ billions

235.7

¥ billions
¥ billions

2013/3

2014/3

(Forecast)

2012/3

Operating income
¥12.5 billion

28.1% increase year on year

53.5
51.2

%

March 2012 March 2013

Owner’s equity ratio
51.2%

2.3 points decrease from the end
of the previous fiscal year

240.0

¥ billions

235.7

¥ billions
¥ billions

2014/3

(Forecast)

2012/3 2013/3

Forecast figures are based on data as of April 26, 2013.
For the latest Company news and IR information, please use its website. (http://www.nesic.co.jp/english/index.html)

Net income
¥7.5 billion

63.1% increase year on year

2012/3 2013/3 2014/3
(Forecast)
Annual dividends
¥45 per share
¥17 increase year on year
235.7 240.0

¥ billions ¥ billions

¥ billions

2014/3

(Forecast)

2012/3 2013/3
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

Interview with the President

NESIC's corporate message:

Re-designing Your Communication

NESIC has adopted a corporate message. We aim to facilitate active communications in society.

The message expresses our determination to enhance value for our customers and to help

enrich society not only by building secure, safe and reliable networks but also by designing future

communications from customers’ perspectives.

[]] What were the results for the fiscal
year under review (from April 1, 2012
to March 31, 2013)?

A We achieved record operating income
and net income.

Orders, net sales and income all exceeded our forecasts.
Orders rose 12% year on year, to ¥241.3 billion. Net
sales increased sharply, 15% year on year, to ¥235.7 yen.
Operating income and net income reached record highs,
at ¥12.5 billion and ¥7.5 billion, respectively.

In the Enterprises Networks business, we bolstered
our sales force and focused on customers’ needs to
strengthen their management, which produced results.

In the Carrier Networks business, we responded
to telecommunications carriers’ strengthening their
networks associated with rapidly increasing numbers of
smartphone users. We integrated submarine seismometer
systems based on submarine cable communications
systems, and this significantly boosted sales.

In the Social Infrastructure business, sales increased
primarily in association with the digitization of fire and
emergency radio and the installation of base stations for
mobile networks for new frequency bands.

E] Could you tell us your forecast for
the next fiscal year?

A We will steadily expand sales
and profits.

We will celebrate our 60th anniversary in December this
year. In the first year for new growth, we aim to expand
sales and profits to achieve net sales of ¥240 billion,
operating income of ¥13 billion, and net income of ¥7.8

billion.

Masao Wada
President
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NESIC has been actively investing in growth. We have
also pursued alliances and acquisitions. In the fiscal year
under review, we formed a business alliance with MOSHI

MOSHI HOTLINE, Inc. for outsourcing routine

administrative operations, such as administration, personnel
affairs and accounting. We have also formed a capital
alliance with Q&A Corporation, which excels in the contact
center business in the technical support field. We have
decided to integrate the mobile communication base station

business of NEC Mobiling, Ltd. Our plan is to steadily

expand sales and profits through these growth investments.

E] You have increased dividends

significantly.

A We will meet our shareholders’ expectations
by increasing our earnings strength.

With net income exceeding expectations, we will distribute

a year-end dividend of ¥26 per share, which will make the
annual dividend per share ¥45, an increase of ¥17 year on year.
With our earnings power increasing, we plan to pay an

interim dividend per share of ¥30 and an annual dividend

Targets for FY2015 (ending March 31, 2016)

Net sales: ¥260 billion | Operating margin: 6% | ROE: 10%

Medium-term management policy

per share of ¥60 for next fiscal year. These figures reflect
our gratitude to our shareholders as we celebrate our 60th
anniversary, but the increase differs from a commemorative
dividend. We will bolster our earnings power to meet our
shareholders’ expectations in terms of returns.

m Could you describe the medium-term
business plan?

A We aim to achieve growth, while shifting
our focus to service businesses.

On May 9 we announced our medium-term plan for the
period up to the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016.

We aim to achieve growth both in sales and profits and
to record net sales of ¥260 billion and an operating margin
of 6% in the fiscal syear ending March 31, 2016. As for
ROE, an index that shows how capital from shareholders
generates profits, we aim to achieve 10%. As a listed
company, we will seek to enhance our shareholder value.

Obur strength is that compared to our competitors we
have an operating base covering a broader range of fields,
including installation/construction, ICT technologies,

Expanding new businesses and service businesses | Strengthening a common operating base that supports businesses

Clients

.E ¢ Enterprises m e Carriers

JOll » Government Offices,
fﬁ) local governments

e Social Infrastructure
Business

Integrated proposals and sales for each customer

Using and strengthening a common operating base

Strategic
investments

e Development of

Base for
ICT Technologies

Base for
Installation
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and support services. Our basic policy is to achieve
growth by making strategic investments, seizing market
opportunities through full, integrated use of this
operating base, and changing our business structure to
focus more on service businesses.

In the medium term, the market for conventional
system integration and maintenance focused on
hardware is unclear or is expected to decline overall.
Meanwhile, some infrastructure markets are set to
expand. Service businesses using ICT (information and
communications technology) should grow sharply.

Given these market conditions, we have developed
the following policies in line with our
strategy map.

1 In our conventional businesses, we will enhance our
strong relations with customers to promote these
operations.

In the Social Infrastructure business, we will focus
on infrastructures for fire-fighting and disaster
prevention systems and mobile communications base
stations, which are expected to grow in the medium
term. We will seek to expand market share, while
enhancing price competitiveness.

In overseas operations, we will expand our support
to our domestic customers expanding into Asian
markets and our existing infrastructure business
through our overseas subsidiaries and affiliates, based
on good relations with our customers.

We aim to expand high value-added service
businesses to achieve stable growth over the medium
to long terms.

We will seek to achieve growth, focusing on
EmpoweredOffice, which promotes working-

style innovation in offices through the contact
center-related services and an ICT renewal, in the
Enterprises Networks business and on the technical
outsourcing business, including multi-vendor
services, in the Carrier Networks business.

Following our 60th anniversary, we will strive to achieve
the medium-term plan to realize our dream of becoming
the top brand in the industry and will enhance our
enterprise value through the growth of our businesses,
organization and each employee. As we pursue this goal,
we hope that we can count on the continued support
and expectations of our stakeholders.

Priority business fields (strategy map)

T & ) i ) \(\Q»
g Social Infrastructure Service N\«C‘@\o@%%
: P
InfrEz;stlructure Business G ® The Company’s
O - -
usiness From construction Fire-fighting and disaster Q main service
to services LJ‘G\/E‘HUOH Services
Digitization of fire-fighting
and disaster prevention Seivi . B ot
ervices In oration
= cloud computing
> Mobile
= communications )
) Contact center Multi-vendor
—~ business SEMIEES
g ICT Operation,
8 renewal outsourcing
= :
= Strengthening EmpoweredOffice Technical Outsourcing Network Total Operation
9 and expansion Business Business s
5]
3, Network
Sl Construction
PBX
q Maintenance
Communication Conventional
Equipment Business
Installation
Deepening
Parts Delivery Operation
N Center

v

|4

The business model shifting from “flow” to “services”
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

Topics

An initiative to bolster the
EmpoweredOffice business

Making Q&A Corporation a consolidated
subsidiary

Expanding service business

To strengthen its contact center business, NESIC strengthened
its capital alliance with Q&A Corporation and made Q&A
Corporation a consolidated subsidiary on June 7,2013. On
the same day, NESIC made Daiichi Ad System Co., Ltd., its
subsidiary, a consolidated subsidiary of Q&A Corporation to
expand new services led by Q&A Corporation.

'Three objectives of the reinforcement of the capital alliance:

1. Strengthening and streamlining the contact center
service infrastructure
NESIC will integrate the contact center systems of Q&A
Corporation and Daiichi Ad System into NESIC’s contact
center infrastructure and will streamline the infrastructure
significantly. NESIC will provide the infrastructure to
contact center service providers as a common service base,
using cloud computing systems.

2. Providing new services, making full use of the operating
base of each company
NESIC will create and provide new services by combining
ICT systems and services for companies and public offices,
where NESIC excels, and Q&A Corporation’s ability to
provide services for individual customers.

3. Expanding high value-added contact center service
businesses
We will expand high value-added contact center service
businesses, for example by extending to Daiichi Ad
System’s customers value-added services that Q&A
Corporation has provided to its corporate customers.

NESIC will provide competitive contact center infrastructure
and high value-added contact center services and will achieve
medium- to long-term growth, taking advantage of synergies
between the two lines of services.

Q&A Corporation

Representative:  Yuichi Kanagawa, President
Head office: Shibuya, Tokyo

Employees: 1,199

Capital: 897.4 million yen

Q&A Corporation provides on-site support services and contact
center services that offer technical support to deal with failures,
troubles and the way to use digital products by visiting customers
or by telephone or e-mail.

Annual Report 2013

An initiative to strengthen the
infrastructure business

Integrating the mobile communication base
station business of NEC Mobiling, Ltd.

Enhancing NESIC'’s ability to provide a broad range of
services, from the design of base stations distribution
to their installation and maintenance in an integrated
manner.

On April 1,2013, NESIC consolidated the mobile
communication base station business of NEC Mobiling,
Ltd. into its mobile communication base station business.

In response to increasing communications traffic
associated with rapidly increasing diffusion rates of
smartphones, carriers are striving to enhance their mobile
communications networks, for example by introducing the
LTE system, a new mobile communications technology.

On April 1, NESIC integrated the base station business
of NEC Mobiling, Ltd. With this integration, NESIC
can provide services covering the whole process related
to base station installation, including, in addition to base
station construction work, where NESIC has been strong,
front-end services, such as research for and the design of
the effective distribution of base stations, and maintenance
services, where NEC Mobiling has exelled.

NESIC can now provide a range of services related
to mobile communications base stations in an integrated
manner and can make optimal comprehensive proposals
involving a backbone communications network.

With this enhanced business structure, NESIC will
expand its business, more actively responding to carriers’

needs for strengthening their networks.

Former NEC
Mobiling, Ltd.

Base Station Establishment
Process

System design
Area design
(Distribution of
base stations)

Establishing a one-stop service system
through the business integration.

Engineering Solutions
Overall planning
of optimal system
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I Priority businesses in the medium-term plan

EmpoweredOffice business Infrastructure business
Main segment: Enterprises Networks business  Main segment: Social Infrastructure business

Expanding the market of EmpoweredOffice Fire-fighting and disaster prevention business
e Expanding the market to include local governments, e Expanding orders in cooperation with NEC Group
hospitals, and public facilities in addition to companies; companies
developing overseas operations e Enhancing our ability to complete projects through
Expanding service businesses structural changes
e Enhancing competitiveness by leveraging and
strengthening a common operating base Mobile business
* Expanding value-adding services in collaboration with e Making the most of synergies through the integration of
Daiichi Ad System Co., Ltd. and Q&A Corporation part of the business of NEC Mobiling, Ltd.
* Increasing the earnings strength by promoting cost
reforms
¢ Promoting self-manufacture and accelerating
EmpoweredOffice Center process reform and standardization
Technical outsourcing business Overseas business
Main segment: Carrier Networks business
Leveraging NESIC’s operating base and expanding Expanding the JOC (Japan Originated Companies)
technical services, including acceptance inspections business (support of overseas operations of
of IT and network equipment, configuration, logistics domestic customers)
and maintenance e Expanding the EmpoweredOffice business into Asia
* Deepening and expanding the carrier market e Leveraging the NEC Group’s assets
¢ Developing new service fields
e Expanding services for companies Expanding the infrastructure business, taking

advantage of relations with local customers
e Building mobile communications infrastructure in

Thailand
e Constructing communications systems at oil plant
_ pDOC _ facilities in Saudi Arabia
Network Total Operation Center Parts Delivery Operation Center
NEC Networks & System | Former NEC
Integration Corporation Mobiling, Ltd. ((‘))
Construction Base station Equipment Testing for System

planning construction testing system maintenance

optimization and repair
services

Planning and Construction Engineering Solutions Maintenance and
Quiality, safety and System optimization Repair Services
schedule control Responding to

users’ needs
in collaboration
with carriers

Annual Report 2013
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

Business performance by segment

Our three core businesses

NESIC provides a range of services from
planning to system design, maintenance, and
operation in an integrated manner in a variety

of fields ranging from ICT within companies to
public and social infrastructure. NESIC has three
core businesses: the Enterprises Networks
business, Carrier Networks business, and Social
Infrastructure business.

We will help a range of customers enhance
their value, harmessing our ability to make
proposals from customers’ perspectives and our
expertise and technological capabilities for all
sorts of networks.

Enterprises Networks
business

This business provides ICT solutions primarily for
companies.

We provide EmpoweredOffice, an office innovation solution
for improving productivity and efliciency and saving energy
in offices. We also operate and monitor systems related to
EmpoweredOffice and provide cloud computing services
using our data centers.

We expanded comprehensive services to help customers
improve business processes and management, focusing

on EmpoweredOffice, an office innovation solution, and
providing other services including cloud computing services
and BPO services. The results of these initiatives were that
net sales rose 5.7% year on year, and orders increased 8.8%
year on year.

Annual Report 2013

wet seles by Segmem

Enterprises
Networks
36.2%

Social
Infrastructure
34.4%

Carrier
Networks
23.2%

2013* bilions KIeN0l

Forecast

2012 hillions L]
2011 billions KJON4

Sales Trends

Net Sales
¥85.3 billion

5.7% increase year on year




Carrier Networks
business

This business provides services related to public networks,
principally for telecommunications carriers.

We support carriers and daily communication tools,
including mobile phones and the Internet, through
integrated services, including the construction of high-
quality and highly reliable networks and maintenance and
operation services using a nationwide support and service
network.

We focused on helping carriers improve their networks

in response to increasing numbers of smartphone

users. In addition, there were sales related to an

submarine seismometer system using a submarine cable
communications system. Net sales increased 17.2% year on
year, and orders climbed 4.5% year on year.

Social Infrastructure
business

This business builds, operates and monitors systems

for ICT infrastructure primarily for government offices,
local governments and public-service corporations
(such as broadcasters and electric power companies).

We help build social infrastructures, including regional
public networks and fire-fighting and disaster prevention
systems, to help everyone live a secure, safe and convenient
life. We also construct telecommunications infrastructures
such as base stations for mobile phones.

We actively responded to increasing investments in the
digitization of fire-fighting and disaster prevention systems
and expanding investments in the installation of base
stations for mobile phones for new frequency bands. Net
sales rose 25.4% year on year, and orders increased 20.5%
year on year.

Sales Trends

2013* billions [efeXe]
Forecast

2012 WY 54.7
2011 bilions Rl

Net Sales
¥54.7 billion

17.2% increase year on year

Sales Trends ?0131* billions KJeK6}
Net Sal,e,s 2012 WY 80.9
¥80.9 billion

25.4% increase year on year 2011 billions JfNs)

*Forecast figure is based on data as of April 26, 2013
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

Corporate Governance ...

The Company believes that the cormerstone of corporate governance is ensuring management
soundness and transparency by establishing a management system that enables quick decision-
making to respond promptly to changes in the operating environment, and by practicing timely,
appropriate disclosure. To that end, the Company has adopted a Board of Corporate Auditors
system and has established a corporate governance system in which the Board of Directors and

Board of Corporate Auditors play key roles.

The Company has also adopted an executive officer system to clearly demarcate the supervisory
function and the business execution function. To enhance management transparency, the Company
has outside directors and outside corporate auditors and seeks to achieve sound management by
encouraging cooperation among corporate auditors, the Internal Auditing Division, and independent

accounting auditors.

l. Description of Corporate Organs
1 Board of Directors

'The Board of Directors is composed of nine directors,
including four outside directors. In addition to maintaining
the number of directors at an optimum level for quick
decision making, the Company has reduced the terms of
directors to one year in order to clarify the management
responsibility of directors and strengthen its management
structure.

2 Executive Officers, Executive Committee,
and Business Execution Committee

Based on an executive officer system, the Company also
formed the Executive Committee, to discuss policies
pertaining to key management and operating issues, and the
Business Execution Committee, to monitor the progress

of and report on significant matters concerning business
execution, consisting of mainly executive officers at senior
vice president level and higher and corporate auditors.

3 Board of Corporate Auditors

The Board of Corporate Auditors consists of five corporate
auditors, including three outside auditors. It decides audit
policies and related matters, and reports on the status of
audits performed by each auditor. Corporate auditors also
attend Board of Directors meetings and other important
meetings, examine significant documents related to

Annual Report 2013

final decisions, and listen to directors and employees on
performance of their duties, thus contributing to a system for
sufficiently scrutinizing directors’ performance of their duties.

4 Internal Auditing Division

The Internal Auditing Division (10 members) has been
established as an internal audit unit independent from the
business execution divisions. It examines through internal
audits whether business execution is being conducted legally
and properly according to relevant laws, regulations and
Company rules.

5 Accounting Auditors

'The Company has an audit contract with KPMG AZSA
LLC as its accounting auditors. KPMG AZSA LLC
expresses its views on the financial statements as an auditor
from an independent viewpoint.

Il. Development of Internal Control
Systems

The Company has established a basic policy for the
development of internal control systems, as shown

below, under Article 362, Paragraph 4, Item 6 of the
Company Law and Article 100, Paragraphs 1 and 3 of

the Enforcement Regulations of the Company Law. The
Company maintains the appropriate execution of operations
under the basic policy, laws and regulations, and internal
regulations.



The Company’s mechanisms of business executioh, management oversight, and internal control

General Meeting of Shareholders

Elect/Dismiss Elect/Dismiss Elect/Dismiss
Management/Supervision
A4 N4
Board of Directors , Audit Board of Corporate Auditors |, | Gooperate
(Directors) N (Corporate Auditors) » 7
. N
Supervise Audit Independent
Auditors
Business Execution CerpeEe
Vv A 4 ‘ Cooperate
‘ Executive Committee ‘ ‘ Business Execution Committee ‘ ‘ Internal Auditing Division ‘< >
|| Management Quality
- ; Improvement Committee
Executive Officers
, Audit
S
Cooperate ¥
‘ Staff, Management Units and Business Units Group Companies
Internal Reporting and Consultation Office
(Corporate Ethics Hotline)

lll. Situation of Outside Directors and
Outside Corporate Auditors

Of the Company’s nine directors, four are outside directors.
The Company believes this number is appropriate for
giving advice and participating in decision making from fair
and objective standpoints, strengthening the Company’s
corporate governarnce.

Outside Director Takayuki Matsui is a professor at the
Graduate School of Professional Accountancy of Aoyama
Gakuin University. The Company has Mr. Matsui use his
expert knowledge in business administration, including
internal control, to ensure transparency in the management
of the Company and to strengthen corporate governance.
Mr. Matsui attended all 13 meetings of the Board of
Directors held in the fiscal year ended March 31,2013. He
has been designated as an independent director defined
in Rule 436-2, Paragraph 1 of the Securities Listing
Regulations of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

Outside Director Tetsujiro Arano is engaged in the network
solution business of NEC Corporation and uses his
extensive experience and knowledge for the management of
the Company. Mr. Arano attended 10 of 11 meetings of the
Board of Directors held in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2013 after his appointment on June 26, 2012.

Outside Director Yumiko Ichige is a lawyer at Nozomi
Sogo Attorneys at Law. Using her professional knowledge
and viewpoint about corporate legal affairs, Ms. Ichige
oversees the business execution of the Company from a fair
and objective standpoint of an outsider. Ms. Ichige attended
all 11 meetings of the Board of Directors held in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2013 after her appointment on
June 26,2012. She has been designated as an independent
director defined in Rule 436-2, Paragraph 1 of the Securities
Listing Regulations of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

Outside Director Naoki Hashitani is engaged in the IT
Service business of NEC Corporation and uses his extensive
experience and knowledge for the management of the

Annual Report 2013
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Company. Mr. Hashitani attended 9 of 11 meetings of the
Board of Directors held in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2013 after his appointment on June 26, 2012.

Of the Company’s five corporate auditors, three are
outside corporate auditors. We believe this number is
appropriate for auditing the directors’ execution of their
duties from fair and objective standpoints, to strengthen the
Company’s corporate governance.

Outside Corporate Auditor Junichi Okuyama has been
engaged in monitoring of sales activities and accounting for
many years. Taking advantage of his extensive experience
and knowledge relating to internal control, Mr. Okuyama
primarily audits the legality of business execution from a
fair and objective standpoint. Mr. Okuyama attended all
11 meetings of the Board of Directors and all 10 meetings
of the Board of Corporate Auditors held in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2013 after his appointment on June 26,
2012.

Outside Corporate Auditor Harutame Umezawa is
qualified as a lawyer and has considerable knowledge in
finance and accounting. Using his professional knowledge
and viewpoint about the law, Mr. Umezawa audits the
directors’ performance of their duties from a fair and
objective standpoint of an outsider. He attended 12 of 13
meetings of the Board of Directors and all 13 meetings
of the Board of Corporate Auditors held in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2013. Mr. Umezawa has been designated
as an independent auditor defined in Rule 436-2, Paragraph
1 of the Securities Listing Regulations of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange.

Outside Corporate Auditor Takaaki Yamamoto is
engaged in accounting in NEC Corporation. Making
full use of his extensive experience and knowledge relating
to internal control, Mr. Yamamoto chiefly audits the
legality of business execution from a fair and objective
standpoint. Mr. Yamamoto became an outside auditor at
the ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June
25,2013.

There are no special interests between the Company and
its outside directors or outside corporate auditors.

'The outside directors and outside corporate auditors
regularly exchange information and consult with the
Internal Auditing Division and staff departments, receiving
reports on business execution at meetings of the Board of
Directors and on other occasions.

'The outside corporate auditors cooperate with the
independent auditors, exchanging information and
consulting with them regularly at meetings of the Board of
Corporate Auditors and on other occasions.
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IV. Internal Audits and Audits by Auditors

The Internal Auditing Division cooperates with the
corporate auditors. The division reports the results of audits
carried out under an audit plan for each fiscal year to the
corporate auditors once a year and exchanges opinions with
them as necessary.

The corporate auditors, the Internal Auditing Division,
and the accounting auditors cooperate with each other,
exchanging opinions as necessary for statutory audits.



NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

CSR Policy

NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation is a
network system integrator that creates new communication.
Harnessing its strengths—technologies and experience
associated with networks—and its expertise in I'T, NESIC
engages in a range of services, from planning and design to
system integration, installation and outsourcing, for systems
that enable diverse forms of communication.

The Company’s corporate message, “Re-designing
your communication,” expresses its aspirations to enhance
communication through those services and to create and
develop connections, ties, and links between people, between
people and society, and between people and the earth. In
addition to contributions through our services, we will
engage in a range of activities that help to protect the global
environment and strengthen our connection with the earth.
We will also take steps to enhance customer satisfaction
so that we build trust and strengthen our connection
with our customers. Meanwhile, we will participate in
local contribution activities to maintain and enhance our
connection with communities.

The basis of those connections are our human resources,
organization, and activities to ensure compliance, safety and
security. We are hiring diverse human resources and offering
systematic career development. In addition, we are creating
better working environments. We ensure compliance and
security while developing and providing secure systems and
services with reliable quality.

Through a range of challenges in society through all
our corporate activities, we are contributing to sustainable
development in society and the world.

Major Themes in CSR
1 People’s communication

As a network system integrator, we will fuse our strengths—
technologies and experience associated with networks—and
our I'T expertise to provide systems that enable diverse
forms of communication. Through these systems, we will
enhance human communication and help to create and
develop connections between people, between people and
society, and between people and the earth.

2 Connection with the earth

We will offer systems and services that help reduce CO,
emissions and energy consumption. Meanwhile, we will

contribute to reducing society’s environmental footprint
(load) and protecting the global environment through
activities in our business that minimize the environmental
burden, use resources effectively, and maintain biological

diversity.
3 Connection with customers

As a partner of our customers, we will strive to build trust
by providing systems and services that contribute to our
customers’ businesses.

4 Connection with communities

As a good corporate citizen, we will engage in assistance to
disaster areas and international cooperation, among other
activities, in response to demands from society. We will
contribute to communities through communication with
them.

5 Enhancing compliance and achieving
safety and security

We will consistently enhance compliance and pursue
and ensure information security and safe work. We will
deliver systems and services that have reliable quality.

6 Cultivating diversity and creating better
working environments

We will respect fundamental human rights in all corporate
activities and will hire and cultivate human resources

with diverse individuality. We will take steps to create
better working environments where people can fulfill their
potential.

Assistance in disaster areas

Volunteer reconstruction assistance in areas affected by the
Great East Japan Earthquake

Contribution to education
for the young

Antarctic Club natural science classes are held in elementary
schools. In the classes, NESIC employees that we have
dispatched to the Antarctic each year to join winter groups
there come together for talks.

Annual Report 2013
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

I Directors and Corporate Auditors .....x

(From top left)
Mr. Minami
Mr. Wada
Mr. Kodama
Mr. Hara

Mr. Sato

Board of Directors Corporate Auditors

President Junichi Okuyama (full-time) *

Masao Wada Akinori Kanehako (full-time)
Hirotaka Akizuki

Senior Vice President and Member of the Board Harutame Umezawa *>*

Takahiko Hara Takaaki Yamamoto *

Yoichi Sato

Shougo Minami

Yoshifumi Kodama

Member of the Board

Takayuki Matsui *!-2

Tetsujiro Arano *!

Yumiko Ichige *2

Naoki Hashitani *

*1: Qutside directors as stipulated in Item 15 of Article 2 of the *3: Outside corporate auditors as stipulated in ltem 16 of

Company Law of Japan Article 2 of the Company Law of Japan

*2: Independent director stipulated in Rule 436-2, Paragraph *4: Independent auditor stipulated in Rule 436-2, Paragraph
1 of the Securities Listing Regulations of the Tokyo Stock 1 of the Securities Listing Regulations of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange Exchange
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

I Six-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data

NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Th f
Millions of yen ousands of

U.S. dollars '
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2013

For the year:

Orders Y 241271 ¥ 215373 ¥ 212277 ¥ 222,046 ¥ 245257 ¥ 254512 $ 2,561,635

Net sales 235,716 204,658 217,948 211727 249,070 268,212 2,502,559

Selling, general and administrative expenses 24,699 22,332 22,297 23,070 24,501 24,824 262,225

Operating income 12,483 9,747 10,835 9,867 10,968 10,743 132,530

Net income 7,492 4,593 4,747 5,806 5,164 4,412 79,541

Free Cash Flows -4,662 16,053 -3,499 14,185 4,778 6,355 -49,496

Capital expenditures 3,070 2,533 2,762 1,928 2,529 2,611 32,594

Depreciation and amortization 2,164 1,941 2,151 2,244 2,270 2,130 22,975

Research and development costs 98 92 52 119 290 419 1,040
At year-end:

Total assets Y 168,205 ¥ 149,707 ¥ 149,923 ¥ 146,916 ¥ 147462 ¥ 154171 $ 1,786,761

Shareholders’ equity 86,540 80,692 77445 74,043 69,334 65,257 918,781

Total net assets 86,797 80,651 77464 74,221 69,340 66,132 921,510
Per share of common stock (yen and U.S. dollars) :

Net income ¥ 18067 ¥ 9236 ¥ 9546 ¥ 11674 ¥ 10361 ¥ 8867 $ 1,600

Net assets (BPS) 1,731.29 1,610.38 1,646.42 1,479.62 1,381.92 1,311.71 18,381

Cash dividends applicable to the year 45.00 28.00 26.00 25.00 22.00 20.00 478
Ratios and return indicators:

Operating income to net sales (%) 5.3 4.8 5.0 4.5 4.4 4.2

Net income to net sales (%) 3.2 2.2 2.2 2.7 2.1 1.7

Return on assets (ROA) (%) 7.9 6.4 7.4 6.9 7.4 6.9

Return on equity (ROE) (%) ° 9.0 59 6.3 8.2 7.7 7.0

Owners' equity (Net worth) ratio (%) 51.2 53.5 51.3 501 46.6 42.3

Debt to equity ratio (times) * 0.05 0.05 0.08 0.07 0.07 0.09

Number of employees 6,024 5,936 5,939 5,998 5,906 5,817

Net sales per employee (thousands of yen) ® ¥ 391830 ¥ 34475 ¥ 36516 ¥ 36580 ¥ 42493 ¥ 42247 $ 415437

Net income per employee (thousands of yen) © 1,244 774 795 975 879 722 13,207

Notes

1. U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen, for convenience only, 4. Debt to equity ratio: Interest-bearing debt / Net assets

at the rate of ¥94.19 = U.S.$1.00, the approximate Tokyo foreign exchange market rate 5. Net sales per employee: Net sales / Average number of employees during the term

as of March 31, 2013. 6. Net income per employee: Net income / Average number of employees during the term
2. Return on assets: Ordinary income / Average total assets during the term
3. Return on equity: Net income / Average net assets during the term
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250,000 235,716 15,000
217,727 217,948
204,658 12,483
200,000 12,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

9,000

6,000

3,000

(As of March) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (As of March) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Net Income Total Assets and Total Net Assets
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) Bl Total assets M Total net assets
8,000 7,492 200,000
168,295
7,000
147,462 146,915 149,923 149,707
6,000 |~ 150,000

5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000

1,000

(As of March) 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013

100,000

50,000

(Asof March) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Operating Income to Net Sales ROE and ROA
and Net Income to Net Sales
(%) @ Operating income to net sales @ Net income to net sales (%) @ ROE (Return on equity) @ ROA (Return on assets)
6 = 10 [
T @__@/©\@/© -
8
4 =
6 —
3 —
4 -
2 —
1= 2™
| | | | | | | | | |

(As of March) 2009 2010 2011 2012

Annual Report 2013

2013

(AsofMarch) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013



Consolidated
Financial
Statements

Contents

Consolidated Balance Sheets 18
Consolidated Statements of Income 20
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 21
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 22
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 23
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 26
Independent Auditors’ Report 47

Annual Report 2013

17



18

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
NEC Wetworks & System Intepration Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiarics
As ol March 31, 2013 and 2012

Asggats
Currend assets:
Cash and cash equivalems

Motes and accounts receivable (notes 4 and 23)

Inventories (notc 7

Dieferred tax assets (nofe 113

Onber current assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total current assels

[roperty and cquipment:
Land
Huildings and siructures (note &)
Machimery and vehicles
Frurnittre and fixiures {note §)
Comslruction In progress
Other (note 3
Accumulated depreciation
Property and cquipment, net

[mbangibles, net ol accumulated amortization {oole 9)

Investments and olher gsscts:
Investient securities (poles 5 and &)
Iefermed 1ax assets (nole 11)

Oiher assefs (notes 12 and 23
Aldlowanes for doubtful acenunts

‘lowal investments and other assets

Total assels

Annual Report 2013

¥

Thousands of

Millions of yen .5, dollars
(hote 3)

rith k! amz 2 E
MO ¥ 7586 b 328921
CERIE 75193 959,250
L6374 E.043 11033
4,941 4.148 52,536
3.124 2657 35,343
(11&) (398) {1,233)
142, 4% L 25,240 _L3i5,141
2.508 2,518 26,067
£.549 g.121 ELHEUT
215 286 2286
9515 0526 101,170
161 248 1.733
1,45 1.112 13,982
_[12.873) (12,7399 {137.537)

9292 O 06k OR.7Y9
4,41 3836 25,043
747 g 7,943
G175 6,239 5,094
5,403 4,002 AT 448
(H0) (78} (734}
12.26] 114463 130,367
168,295 ¥ 149,707 § L7E942)




Theusands af

Millions of yea L 1.5, dollars
(note 3)
2013 mz 2013
Liabilitics and Met Asoets
Current liabilities:
Short-lerm bank loans (note 1G] ¥ 509 ¥ — £ 0,369
Current instaliments ol long-term debt (note 109 S0 3500 5316
Moates and accounts pavable (notes 4 and 23) 36,404 i3zl 3ETOTI
Advances received (note 23) 2.550 |.987 27,113
Accrued income taxes {note 11) 4.367 LR d6.433
Acerued bonuses (o direetors and corporate auditors 95 39 1.021
Accrued warrandy on pradugis o) .- Q57
Accrued losses on sales contracts 1,n2% k1] 11530
Orier current Liabilities 13975 11,242 _ 45
Toual current liabilities 59.612 30,277 631833
Long-term Liahitilies:

Long-term debrt (note 10) 1,000 300 31599
Agcried employess’ retirement henefils (note 12) i7.041 16 828 L&7.570
Other fiabilities {aoles L1 and 133 1,243 1,345 13.214
Total long-term liabilities 21,884 18,778 232 685

Total ligbilities R1.497 Ao ss Hhh, 378

Shareholders” equity {note 14

Comunon stock: 13,122 b3.122 139,522
Auvthorized 10,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 49,773,807 sharcs a barch 31, 2013 and
2012
Capital surplus 16,650 L6650 177033
Retained camingy 36824 50073 o014, 159
Treasury stock, at cost; 48,119 shares at March 31, (56] 133 {555)
2013 and 46,138 shares at March 31, 2012
Total sharcholders” eguiny 8,540 852 9 14
Accomulsted orther comprehensive Income:
et unrealized holding gain on other securities (nole 5} 13 0 138
Foreigh currgngy translation adjustmenis {464y  {8]12) LR
Todal accumulated ather comprehensive incame ) (431} el {4,795
Minority interests TOR 571 1528
Total nel assels 26,707 8631 Y12 8481
Comminments and contingencies {note 1%)
Total labilitics and oed assels ¥ 168,295 ¥ 1449 77 1,786,421

The accompanying notes to conselidated financial slatements are an integral part of these consolidated
Ninancial stale ments,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

NEC Mewworks & System lotegration Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended hdarch 31, 2013 and 2012

Thousands of

Milliomns of ven 0.5, dollars
(oute 37
i1 N iz 203
el sales {note 230 ¥ 23157l ¥ 204 658 L 25060283
Cost ol sales (notes 7 and 23) 198,533 172578 2,110,930
Gross profit ITa82 12070 395,343
Selling, gencral and administrative expenses 24,659 32,332 162 616
(noles 17 and 18)
Operaling incoms 12,483 0747 132,727
Onher income (expensc):
Interest income 43 a9 473
lnteres) expense (44} (63 {408}
Gividends income ol insurance [LE LO5 b L27
Lacharyee fain &l FEX
loss on disposal of property and cquipment (140} (a0 (1.584)
lenpairment loss {note §) (165) — {1,754}
her. et a4 (238) T34
70} (176) (7443}
Inn;:,umc belone income laxes and minarily 12412 5570 131572
interests
Income taxes (note 11):
Current 3,554 3. 361 30054
Nefereed _ (7L 1,659 1757
4,841 4,920 51473
[ncome belfore minority interests T7.571 4,649 £0.500
Minority inlerests T8 56 By
et income ¥ TA91 ¥ 4,593 L 79,660

The accompanying notes fo consolidated financial stalements are an inlegral part of these consclidaled

fimancial stalements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MEC Networks & System Integration Corporation and Consolidated Subsidianes

Years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Millions of ven

Thewsands of

1.5, dollars
{nole 1)
2013 2012 2003
tncome before minority interests ¥ I5T71 ¥ 4,644 L 50,500
Other comprehensive ingome avising during the vear
(oule 19;
Net uarealized huldiog loss on other securitics 12 (1 128
Forelgn cuorrensy translation adjusmerns 2 (114 2212
Total other comprehensive income i 1010 2,350
arising during the year
Comprehensive income ¥ T2 ¥ 4,533 s 42850
Comprehensive income aftributable to:
wners of the parent ¥ 7632 ¥ 4522 Y 21,161
Minority inluresls 134 11 L.478

The accompanying noles o conselidaied financial statemenis are an inteeral parl of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
EC Networks & System Integration Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiarics
Years ended March 31,2013 and 2012

Millions of ven

Nembersaf Sharcholders” equity L
sl'ms;rmoﬁmmm Common Capital Retzined Treasury Total
slock surplus eamings stock
| Thousands)
Balanee at Apeil 1, 2011 49771 ¥ 3,122 ¥ 16,650 ¥ 47722 ¥ (50 ¥ 11445
Changes arising during wear:
Cash dividends (13433 (1,342)
Met Imcome 4,503 4,593
Porchase of reasury stock (3] (4]
[Msposition of reasury stock (0 (] ]
‘Transfer lrom vapital surplus
to rerained earﬁings i 0 {0} —
Met changes in accounts other
than shareholders™ equity L L _ o
Total changes during the seae —_ - = 3250 {_3')_' '____'_3.2-46
Ralance at March 38, 2012 49773 1i 122 16,650 50973 (53) Bt 0oz
Changes arising during year
Cash dividends (1.640% (LG40)
Nt income 7.492 7.402
Turchase of treasury stock (2} ()
Dhsposition of treasury stock — —
Net changes in aceounts other
than sharcholders” syuity
Total chanpes during the year —— — 77— — 5851 (2]  5.R4R
Balanee at March 31, 2013 49773 ¥ 13,122 ¥ 6650 ¥ 56834 ¥ {567 ¥ £0, 3400
Millions of yen
Acourolated nther comprehensive income
e iz Farcier: mmares nlinority Total net
b ding gaing.oss translatcn Total inlerests assels
cnaher seurcis  adjusiments
Balance at April 1, 211 ¥ 2 ¥ (5437 ¥ (5401 ¥ 259 ¥ 77404
Changes anising during year:
Cash dividends (1,342}
Mer income 4,593
Purchase of rreasary stock (4}
Disposition of treasury stock 0
Transiir from capital susplus L
to retained eamings
et changes in acoounts aother
than :;Pﬁ:lreimlders‘ equity (1) (69 (70) I {39
Total chanpes daring the vear i1) (69) £ 1 1187
Balance at March 31, 2012 a (612) (el 371 50.65]
Changes arising during vear:
Cash dividends £ 1.640)
Mot meome 7492
Purchase of reasury stock (2]
Disposition of reasury stock —
Mol changes inaccounts ather
than s!‘lga.rehnlderﬁ‘ equity 12 147 160 136 297
Total chamges during the vear 12 147 160 Lif &, 145
Balance al March 31,2013 ¥ 13 ¥ (464 ¥ (4511 ¥ 05 ¥ 25,797
{Continued)
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Thousands af ULS, Dollars (note 33
Sharcholders’ equity

Common Coptal - Reahed Ty gy
Palance at April 1. 2012 § 136522 F 177033 8 541978 % (5643 % E57.969
Changes arizing during year:
Cash dividends {17438 (17,438)
™et incomc 79,660 19,660
Purchase of treasury stock {210 21}
Dizposition of treasury stock — —
Met changes 10 accounts alher
than sharcholders’ equity
Tatal changes during the year = — 63,212 {21) 62,180
Rakace at March 31, 2013 5 139522 F 177033 % oML IR % (5950 % 920,149

Thousands of 5. Duiﬂr_&;_[]}tﬂu I
_Accumulaled other comprehensive imuome

Seumregizel  Fandpn sumena Minarity Tolal nol
kel ig aain (fa53) tranlaties Total inICTests LSS
an-nfkx sgcunlies sdjiilments

Halance at April [, 2012 oy 0% (6,307 % B4971 % 6071 857333
Changus arising during year:
Cash dividends

(17.458)
el income TQ 640
Purchase of treasury stock (21)
Disposition of treasory stock .-
Met changes in accnl:mls IthT 128 1 563 1701 1,446 5.158
than sharelholders” equiry
Total changes daring the ear 128 1,563 1,701 1.446 65,338
Balance at barch 31, 2013 5 138 & (49340 % (17951 % 7328 F Q22881

The accompanyving netes to consolidated financial statements are an inlegral part of these consolidated
financial statements,
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Income belore income daxes and minoreiny interests ¥

Depreciation and amortizalinn

Tpairment Ioss

Amortization ol gowdwill

Increase {decrease) in allowance for doubtful
receivables

Increase in lability for retirement and severance
benelis

Increase (decrease] in agceved bonuses to directors
and corporale audilors

Increase (decrease] i accrued losses on sales
contracls

Inerease in acerued warranty on products
Interest and dividend ingeme
Imterest expense
[oss on disposal of properly and cquipment
(increase) decrease in noles and accounts
receivable
[norease iminvenlo s
[nicrease {decrease) in notes and accounts payable
Cither, net
Subtotal
Interest and dividend receivied
Interest paid
Income 1axes paid
Met cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Annual Report 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
MEC Metworks & System Intepration Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiarics
Years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Thousands of

Millions of yen L1.5. dallars
{now 3)
2013 20012 23
12412 ¥ 5,570 b 131,572
2164 [.941 23,009
165 — 1,754
81 &9 561
(292) 100 (3.10%)
ROR 157 B.3%
37 (30} i
LY (37} 10,537
1Y — 046
(53] {74 1553)
44 63 468
44 50 1.584
(19.556) 12,861 (207.932)
237 (94%) (246381
5953 [935) 63,204
U .. B Lo
3124 22,144 i3.21s
52 08 553
(221 (63) (478}
(4.365) (3.477) (464110
(1.233) LB.701 (13,1100
(Continued)




Thosands of

Millions of yen 0.5, dollars
N .{.r.mt:: n
2013 2012 X3
ash flows from investing activities:
Purchaze of property and equipement i1,529) (1.3 {16,257
Proceeds from sale of property and cquipment 1 25 1
Purchase of intangibles (1,415 (1,137 (15077
Purchase of investrent secunties (49) (&) [524)
Procesds from sale of investment securities 5 — 85
Lnans receivabla made [LO) oy {106}
Collection of loans receivable L4 23 149
Pu;ihttzeen‘;dﬁ;er;tﬁt{gés in affiliates accounted for (396} o (42111
Cxher. net 50 (1340 (532
Met cash used ininvesiing activities - (3,429 (2,648} E 6.459]
Cash Mlews from financing aelivities:
et increase (decrease) in shor-term bank loans 582 (1,800 a.R60
Rcpayments of long-lerm debt (3.50M (500 (37.214)
Proceeds from Jong-term debt 3.000 — 11,508
Proceeds from sale and purchase of treasury stock, (23 (3) (21
nel - =
I2ividends paid ta shareholdors (E.0d42) (1.3400 {17,430
I}I:ﬂi?:ﬂ;mlsd toe odnoraty sharehodders of (2) _ (21
her, net (470 {135} (4.967)
Nut cash used in financing activities CT(2.068) C3LTH _{24.96T)
Iif’f':ect_n.!';?.xdtlangc rale changes on cash and cash 77 (9%) 819
eygulvalents
et increase (decreasc) in cash and cash equivalents (6,651 i1.975 (TR
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 37,386 23611 30638
Cash and cash vquivalents at end of wear ¥ 30935 ¥ 37.586 3 328.92]

The aceompanying noles 1o consolidated financial slatements are an intcgral part of these consolidated
financial sialcments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MNEC Nertwatks & Svstem Integration Corporation and Conselidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2003 and 2012

1. BARIS OF PREPARATION

MEC Wetworks & System Entegration Corporation {the “Company™) and its domestic subsidiaries mainiain
their books of account in conformity with the financial accounting standards of Japan. [t foreign
subsidiaries maintain their books of account in confomity with these of their countries of damicile.

The accompanyiog consolidated financial statements have been compiled from the consolidated financial
statemients prepared by the Company as required under the lapanese Financial Instruments and 1ixchange
Law and, have been prepared in accordance with accounting principtes generally accepted in Japan, which
are different in certain respects as to the application and disciosure reguirements of IFRSs.

As pepnitted by the Jzpanese Financial Instruments and Exchange 1aw, amounds of 1ess than ong roillion
ver bave been omitted.  As a result, the wtals shown in the accompanying conselidated financial
staternents (both in yen and LS. dollars) do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounis,
Certain amnounds in the prior yvear's consolidated financial statements have been reclassified 1o contoon to
the current year's presentalion,

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) Consolidation

The Company has 14 subsidiaries {companies owver which the Company has the ability o conteal Queir
op2rmicnsd as of March 31, 2013 {14 subsidiaries as of Mareh 31, 2002y and 1 affiliated company which
the company has the abilite to exercise significant influence.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements inciude the accouwnts of 1he Company and 1he
sipnificant companies conirolled directly or indirectly by the Company.  Abl sipnificant intercom pany
balances and transactions have heen eliminated in consolidation,

Investment in an affiliate is accounted for by the equity method as of hMarch 31, 2003,

The financial stalements of the subsidiaries with vear ends of Deecember 31 have been used for
cansolidation. Al material transsctions thal occurred in the peripds from such year cnds and March 31,
the Company ‘s year ends, bave been adjusted.

The difterence between the carrying amount and the underlying net assets at fair value al the respective
dates of acguisition is allocated w identiliable assets and Habilitics based on fair markel value 11 1he dates
of acquisition.  The unallocated portion of the difference, which is recognized as goodwill or negative
poadwill, is amortized by the straight-line method aver a period. up to twenty years, in which the future
benefit of each investment is expected.

(b} Forc¢igh curréncy translation

Moanetary pssets and liahilities denominated in foreign correncies are Iranslated into yen al the exchangs
rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates,  All revenues and expenses associated with foreign currencies
are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing when sipch transactions were made.  The resnlling
exchange gain or loss 15 credited or charged to income,

The revenue and expeose accounts of the Toreign subsidiaries are translated inlo yeo at the average
exchange rales prevailing during the year, and, exeept for the components ol sharcholders® cguity, the
balanee sheet accounts are Lranskated a1 the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, The
components of sharcholders™ equity are translated at their historical exchange rates.  Translation
adjustments, cxecpl for the portion included in minerity intercsts, ans presentod as & separale component of
net assets in the accompany ing consolidawed fnancial staicments.
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(£) Cash cguivalents

Cazh and cash equivatents include all highly liquid investments — generally with original maturities of thres
muonths or 1035 — that are readily canvertible to known amounts of cash and have oegligible risk of changes
in value due to thelr shon malurises,

{d) Invesiment securities

Investment securities other than those in subsidiaries are classified into three categarizs: trading,
held-te-maturity or other securties.  Trading securilies are measured at fair value and held-to-matueity
securities are carried at amortized cost. hMarketable securities classified as other securities are measured st
iair value with any changes in unrealized holding pain ar loss, net of the applicable income tases, included
directly in net assets.  ™on-marketahle securities classitfied as other securities are carried at cost.
Investment securities classified as other securities are reviewsd for inpairment. Ao impatrmunt loss is
recognized when the Mair valoe of investment securities declines sipnificantly,  Cost of securitics sobd is
determined by the moving-average method.

(e) InvenloTies

Work in process is stated at lower of cosi or net selling value determined on a specilic preject basis.
Purchased goods and materials are siated at lower of cost or net selling vahw determined primariiy by the
moving-pverage methad.

{1) Depreciation and amortizalion
Depreciation ol property and equipinent is principally commputed by the siraight-lioe method,

Significant renewals and inprovemenis are capitalized,  Maintenance and repair costs are charged to
income.

The useful ives of propery and equipment are summarized as follows:

Buildings and structures 3 to 50 years
Machinery and vehicles 2 ta 17 vears
Furniture and fexiures 2t ) vears

Intangibles are amortized by the straight-line method aver their estimated osefll lves.

Software for salc is amortized based on projected sales volumes over he estimated effeclive periods
{within 3 ycars}. Soflware for intemal wse is amonizcd by tbe siraight-line method over the estimated
usclul lives fwithin 5 vears).

{E) Allowance For donbiful receivables

The allowance for doubtful receivables is provided at an amount determined hased on the historical
experience of bad debe with respect o ordinary reccivables, and an estimate of uncollectible amoumts
determined by referenee o specific doubtful receivables from customers which are experiencing financial
difticultics.

(h)Aecrued warranty
Accrued warranly is provided for the estimated warranty cost.

{i) Acerucd losses aon sales contracts

Accrued losses on sales contracls are provided for at the amount of estimated losses for werk in process at
the halance sheet date.  Among sales orders of the Company on hand al balanee sheet date, for projects in
which the estimaled cost is expected to exceed the amount of the sales arder, such excess costs on sales
eontracts are accrued,

(ji Leases
Leased assets related (o finance leasc transactions without title transfer are depreciated on a straight-line

methad, with the tease poriods as their useful lives and no residual valoe.

(k) Rescarch and development costs
Research and development costs are charged to moomme as incorred,

Annual Report 2013

27



28

(1) Retirement benefits

Accried employees® ratirement benefits are provided mainly at an amount caleolated based on the
refirement benefit ohligation and 1he fair value of the pension plan assets at the balance sheet dates, as
adjusted for the unrecognized actwarial gain or toss and unrecogmized prior service benefit or cost,  The
relirerent beneft obligation s atiriboted o each period by the straight-line method over 1he estimated
vears of services of the cligible employees.  Actuarial gain or loss is amertized in the subsequent vear that
it vocurs by the stright-line method over the average remaining years of service of the employees.  Prior
service benclil or cost 15 amortized bepinmiog the year 7T is incumed by the siraight-line method over the
average remaining years of servicw ol the employees.

Cenain consolidated subsidiary has unfunded defined benefit pension plans for directors. The provigion
for the plans has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for vested benelds to
which directors are entitled if they were to retire and sever immediately at the balance sheet date.

{m) Income {axes
1Jeferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences hetween financial reporting and

the rax bases of the assets and |iahilities and are measwred wsing the enacled tax rates and laws which will
be in effect when the differences are expected 1o reverse.

{n) Derivative Tinancial instraments

Perivatives are recorded at their fair value with any changes in anrealized gain or loss chargad or credied
to income, except for those which meet the crileria for deferral hedpe accountiog under which wnrealized
gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, is directly included in Lthe net assets.

(v} Revenwe eecagnifinn

The percentage-ol-completion method is applied il the sutcome of the constructian activity can be
estimated reliably, stherwise the compleled-contract method is applied.  The percentage of completion as
of the cnd of the reponting period is estimated based on the perecntage of the cost incurred to the estimated
ttal cost.

{p) Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors

The Company and its domestic consolidated suhsidiaries prowide aceried bonses 1 directors and
carporate auditors (excepi for internal cormpaorate auditers) based on the estimated ameunts to be pad in
respect of (he vear,

(q} Accounting for consumption taxes
Coensumplion taxes penerally withheld apon sale as well as that paid for purchases of geods or seovices, are
recorded as a liability or an asset, and are excluded from the relevant revenue, costs or expenses.

(F} Aceounting standards issned bt rot yet applied

Accounting standard for retirement benelits

O May 17, 2012, the ASBS issued ASBF Statement No.26, ~Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefis™
and ASBE] Guidance e 25, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits,” which replaced
the Accounting Standard for Retiremoent Benafits that had heen issued by the Busioess Accounting Couneil
in 1998 and the ather related goidance.

Under the revizsed accounting standard, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs shall be recognized
within net assets in the conselidated balance sheets, aiter adjusting 1ax effects, and the fundiog dehieit or
surplus shall be recopnized as a liability or asset. Io addilion, the new accounting standard ailows a
chaice for the method of attributing expected benefits to periods of either the straight-line basis or ptan’s
Benefil formuta basis.  inaddition, the determination method of the discount rale was amended,

The Company ¢xpects 0 apply the revised accounting standard from the end of the fiscal year endiog
March 31, 20014 except for the smendment of the calculalion method for present valoe of defined benefit
ehligatinng and corrent service cnsis, which will be adopted from 1he baginning of the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2015.

The ellect of adoption of tbis revised accountiog standard (s now under assessment at the Lme of
preparation of the accompanying consolidated Ninancial statemenis.
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() Reclassilications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the conselidated financial slatements for the year ended
Mareh 31, 2012 to conform ta the presentalion for the year ended March 311, 2013

J. U5 DOLLAR AMOUNTS

The ranslation of ven amounis ko LS, dollar amounts is included solely for the convenience of readers
ouside Japan and has been made, as a matter of arithmetic computation only, al ¥%4.05 = U.5.51.00, the
appreximate rate of exchange on March 29, 2013, The translation should not e construed as a
represemation that yen have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into T1.5. dollars ot
that or any olher ralc.

4. NOTES MATURING on MARCH 3, 2003 and 2012

As financial institulions in Japan were closed on March 31, 2015 and 2002, notes maluring on March 31,
213 and 2017 were settled on 1he following business day.

The following notes are included in the consolidated balance shepts.

Thousands of

Millions of yen 115, dollars
2013 anz -k
Motes and accounts reczivable ¥ 355 ¥ 166 % Z711
Motes and accounts payable 53 37 564

A INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The cormponents oF unrealized gnn or 1W0ss an narketable secorities classilied a5 other segoritics al March
302013 and 2002 are stymimarized as follows:

Mi]_li__rg]ls of ¥on Thousands of 17.%. dollars

Carrving  Acquisition  lnrealized  Carrying  Acguisifion  Unrealized
March 31,2013 value cost aain {loss) value COst pain {loss}
Sccuritivs whose carrving value o S o
execeds their acyuisition ost:
Equily securities L 62 ¥ 34 3 103] 5 639 % in2
Subtotal 97 62 34 103 659 362

Securities whose acquisition cost
cxcewds their camying value:

Equiry seeoritics 27 a0 {12} 287 425 {128)
Subtotal 27 40 {12} 287 425 {128)
Taral ¥ 124 ¥ 13 ¥ 21 ¥ r3g Po109s 223

dillions of ven
Carrving  Acquisition  Unrealized
bdarch 3F, 2012 value cost gain (loss)
Securities whose carmying value
exceeds their acquisition cost:
Equity securitics ¥ 65 ¥ 51 ¥ 13
Subtotal 65 s 13

Securilies whose acquisition cost
exceeds their carrving value:

Equity securities 14 a6 {13
Subtotal M 46 i
Total ¥ 49 ¥ 98 y 1
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Unlisted equity securilies of Y262 million (32.786 thousand) and ¥209 million at March 31, 2013 and 2012,
are not included in the above table because there is no market valoe and fitture cash Mows cannot be
estimated, therefore it is exiremely difTicult to measuee the fair value,

6. INVESTMENT IN AN AFFILIATE
The apgregate carrving amount af investiment in an affiliate as of March 31, 2013 is Y360 million ($3.828
thousand).

7. INVENTORIES
al lovendories ol March 31, 2003 and 2012 are as follows:

Thousands of
11.5. dollars

AT [ S
Work in process ¥ B9a3 ¥ 6388 % 93332
Furchased goods and materials 1.408 1.454 14,971
Tutal ¥ 100374 ¥ 043 % 110303

h} Losses from rovaluation of lower-pl-cost or nel sclling value Tor the years ended March 36,2013 and
2012 are Y47 tmillion {§5.06] thousand) and ¥62 1 million. respectively.

c] |.osses on sales coniracts for the vears ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are ¥ 1032 million {310,973
thousandy and Y44 million, respectively.

dy Accrued losses on sales vontracts and work in process commesponding W the contract are nol oftsetin the
accompany ing consolidated balance shests.
Work in process comesponding to acerued Josses on sales contracs at March 30, 2013 and 2012 are as

follows:
Thousands of
~Millians of yen L4 dollars
L) R b S ) I
Work in proccss ¥ ¢ ¥ 13 % Q%KY

B IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FIXED ASSETS
The Company recegnized impaiment loss [or the yoar onded March 31, 2013 as {ollows:

Millions of Thoeusands ol
Location Ulsage Deseription e _ LS dollars
Kawasaki citw, Business  Buildings and structuees ¥ 46 ¥ 484
Kamagawa prefeclurc facilitics Furniture and {ixtures 57 &06
Other 62 359
Tolal ¥ [k I 175

The ftaed assels are grovped according to the classification for management reporting. and idle assets are
grouped as an individval property.  Impairment loss is recognized as the difference between the carrying
amount ind the extimated recoverable amouat lor the assets group which have geoemied operating losses
conlinuingly.

The net realizable value of the business facilities 38 estimated by the value in ose and 15 estimated zero
because no fiture cash flow is estimaled,
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9. GOODWILL
Croodwll 2t March 31, 2013 and 2012 are recorded in the accompanving consolidated halance sheets uwnder
the following caplions:

Thousands of

Millians of ven LS. dollars
2013 2012 2013
Intanpibles, net of accumulated amorization ¥ LM ¥ L0680 % 11,483

10. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEET
Shor-term Bank loans and long-terne debt are unsecured.

The welghted average inlerest rates of current installments of long-term debt for the both years endad
barch 31, 2013 and 2002 were approximately 0.9% and Jonp-terim deht for the vears ended March 33,
2003 and 2012 were approximately 0.58% and (0.7, respectively.

The anoual maturitics of the long-term debt at March 31, X0 3 are as follows:
dillions of  Thousands of

_ _.yem o HS.dollars
¥ear ending March 31,
2014 ¥ S % 33l6
06 3,004 31,898

As af March 31, 2013, the Geowp executed 2 ¥ 1000 million (5106,3246 thousand) committed borrowing
Facility with three domestic hanks, and there is no wiilization {tom this facilicy.

11. INCOME TAXES

Income taxes applicable to the Company and its domestic subsidiarics comprise corporalion, cnlerprise and
habitants” taxes, which, in the aggregate, resulted ima statutory tax rate of approximately 38.0% and

4. 7% Tor 20113 and 2012, respectively.  Income taxcs of the foreign subsidiaries are based penerally on
the tax rates applicable ta their countries of incorporation.

The effective tax rales reflected in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 317,
2013 and 2012 differ froom the statutory wax rate For the following reasons:

- — e e e 2K 3 2013
Statwlory 1ax rate 38.0% 40.7%
Ellect of:
Cxprnses not deductible for tax purposes NG 1.0
Inhabitant tax per capina levy .9 1.2
Decrease in valuation allowance £1.0% (2.7
Adjustments of defermed tax assets doe 1o change io stalulory tas cale — 1.z
Oiher, net . I 7
L ffective tax raie 32 0% 50.4%
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Thaoszands of

Millions of ven 1.5, doldlars
o 2013 2012 2013
Dielerred fas assels:
Accrucd employees’ bonuses ¥ 240 ¥ 1850 §F 23044
Social security contribution on emplevees” bunuses 295 246 3137
Allowance for doubulul receivables 52 153 553
Accrued enlerprise tax 343 251 3,647
Loss on revalation of inventories 1,718 2048 18,267
Uinrealizued profin on invenlories ] i2 202
Accrued [osses on sales conlracts 387 11 4,115
Lieprecialion 416 113 4,423
Soltware 108 L72 1.148
Accrued emplovees” retirement henefles 6,336 6,168 67,368
Stock dividends 123 123 1,308
Impairment loss on invesiment securities 89 103 944
(Mhet Bl6 w00 3676
Subtatal 13,147 12,285 139,787
Yaluation allowance AT ) A ) (11.855)
Tatal 12,032 L1.034 127,912
Drelermed 1ax Liabilitics:
Prepaid emptoyees” retinement benefits {B13) (3BT (340
txhcr (113) (58} (1,223
Toral {32 (R4t} (9878
Nel defiermed s assels ¥ ORI ¥ I0GAE S 1180054

Mot defermed rax assers and labilitics as of March 31, 20103 and 2002 are reflected in the accompanying
consolidated balanee sheets under the [ollowing captions:
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Current aszets « Defemed 1oy assets ¥
[nyastmetts and other assets - eferred 13y assets
Long-term liabilities — Cuber tiahilities

Millions of ven
L1

L2013

4,541
6,179
{7

¥

Thousands of
115, dollars

4158
6.234%

(M

b3

2y

32530
65,649
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12. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have defined henelit plans. covering substanially all
emplovees who ane entitled W lump-sum or annity pavements, the amounts of which are determined by
reference to their basic rates ol pay, Teogth of serviee, and the conditions under which wrmination ccours.

And the Company has a defined conwributico plan for certain future pension benefits,
The following table scts forth the Tunded and accrued status of the plans, and the amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 for the Company s and the consolidated

subsidiaries’ defined Benelit plans:

Thousands ol

Millioos of yen L3, dollars
. _.013 2012 2003

Projecied benetit obligation ¥ oi44.T9%)y ¥ (447307 S (476,321
Plan asscts at fair value 22,149 19214 235502
Unfunded refirement benedit vbligation (22.638)  (23,514)  (240,308)
Unrecopnized acluarial loss 11,422 14,658 L1E, 256
Unrecopnized prior service beneiit (38537 (4.344) (LR
Met ameunt recognized in the consolidated balance sheets (15370 (152001 (163519
Prepaid retirement and severance benefits 2.26) 1.627 24,0460
Accred einplovees retirement benefits Y 176410 ¥ (16R28) 0§ (1ET.STH

The somponents of reticement beneflt expenses for the vears ended barch 31, 2013 and 2012 are outlined
as lollows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen L' .5 dollars
LA 20322013
Service cost ¥ TORT ¥ 1660 % 32137
Interest cost T55 Qg4 E02%
Cxperted retum on plan assels (467) (432 f4.965]
Amortization of acluarial oss 1.451 1,085 15428
Amonization of prior serviee benefit or cost (491} (491 (3210
Tional 3,310 2ELD 35407
Other 327 i 1477

¥ oO365% ¥ 3d 5 3%494

“Onler™ 15 the contribution to the delmed contribution plan.

The assamptions used in accounting for the abowve plans at March 31, 2003 and 2012 are as follows;

2013 2012
[Dyiscount rate Mainly 1.7% Maialy 1.7%
Expeeted rate ol retum on plan assets hdainly 2.5%4 Mainly 2.5%
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13. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
The asset retircment obligations ane based on estimated {utuee restoration obligations related 1o leasehold

contracts of head office and other facilitics.
‘The ohbligations are caleulated based on the estimated office rental period of mainly 20 vears and

discounted rate of 1.7%.

The following table provides Company’s total asset retirement obligalions for the years ended March 31,

2013 and 2012:
Thousands nf

Millions of ven 115 dollars
2013 2012 2013

Balance, beginning of year ¥ 2o ¥ 297 % 3402
Obligations incurred by asset acquisition 44 — 468
Ohligations settled {36) (1.5 (383
Acorelion expense 5 4 33
Revisions in cstimated cash flows — | —_
Balance, end of year ¥ 331 ¥ iz % 3541

14. SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Under Japanese laws and regulations. the entire amount paid for new shares is required to be designated as
common stock,  However, a company may, by resolotion of the Board of Directors, designae an amounl
not exceaeding one half of the price of the new shares as additional paid-in capital, which is inchuded in
capital surphus.

The Companies At provides that an ainount equal o 10% of distribitions. from retained sarmings paid by
the Campany and 15 Japanese subsidiaries be appropristed a5 a legal earndngs reserve.  MNo furthey
approprralions are required when the iotal amount of the additinnal paid-in capital and the legal earnings
reserve cquals 25%% of their respective stated capital.  The Companies Act also provides thal additional
paid-in capital and legal earnings reserve are available for appropriations by the resohaion of the
sharehplders.  “The legal earmings reserve amounted to ¥546 million (55,805 thousand) as of hoth March
31,2013 and 2012, Lepal eprnings reserve is included in retained carnings in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Cash dividends charped to retaimed carnings for the vears ended harch 31, 2003 and 2012 represent
dividends pard out Jueing (hose vears,  The amoont available for dividends is based on the fimoumt
recoried in the Company’s non-consolidated books of acceunt in acvordance with the Companies A

Movement of treasury stocks was as follows:

Shares
213 2012
Al beginning of vear 46,158 41,922
Increase - purchase of odd o4 shares L.961 3646
Pecrease - sale of odd |ot shares — {410h
45119 46, E 38

Avcnd of year

a} Dividends paid dering the year ended March 31, 2012
The following was approved by the Board of Directors held an April 28, 2011,

(2} Total dividends ¥ad46 million
il Cash dividends per common share ¥13
(¢t Record dale March 31, 2011
(dy  Effective date June 2, 2011
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The following was approved by the Board of Ditectors held on October 27, 2001

fa) lotal dividends ¥5us million
(b1 (Cash dividends per common share ¥14
(¢] Regord date September 30, 201
(dy Effeclive date December 2, 201 [

by Dividends paid during the vear eaded March 31, 2013
The Following was approved by the Board of Directors held on Apnl 27, 2012,

Y696 million (87,400 thousand)
¥r4 {1005

March 31,2012

June 5, 2012

{a) Total dividends

(b Cash ¢ividends per cominon share
{c] Record date

{dy Effeclive date

The fotlowing was approved by the Board of Directors held on Oceber 25, 201 2,

¥od4 million (510037 thousand)
¥19(50.20%

Seplember 390, 2012

Thecember 4, 2012

{a) Total dividends

{by Cash dividends per commaon share
() Record daw

(dy  LEiffccrive date

¢} Dividends to be paid after March 31, 2013 but the record date for the payment belongs to the

year ended March 31, 2013
The lollowing was approvied by the Board of Directars held on Apeil 26, 2013,

¥1.292 million (313737 thousand}
Retained eamings

¥26 (5028

March 31,2013

June 4. 2013

{2)  Totak dividends

{b}  1dividend source

(e Cash dividends per common share
(d] PRecord dag

{¢y  EMective date

15. CONTINGENMT LIABILITIES

At March 31, 2013, the Company was contingently liable as puaranmor of indebtedness of the Compaony’s

employecs in the aggregate amound of ¥533 million (35364 thousand).

16. LEASES

Operating leases

Futurc minimum cperating |case pavments subseqnent to March 31, 20013 and 2012 for non-cancelable

operating leases are swrmmarn Zed as follows:;

Thousands of

Millions of ven 115 dollars
L Y 2013
Dhze within one year ¥ 1974 ¥ 1.886 F 20934
Due over one year 2,350 4129 24 D36
Tatal ¥ o431 ¥ 6,015 ¥ 45985
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17. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Th significant componcnts of selling, general and admioisirative expenses (or the years ended March 31,
2013 and 212 are as follows:

Thousands of
willions of yen Li% dollars
L 2013 2012 2013
Emplovees salary ¥ 11,537 ¥ 10556 % 12208469
Provision for bomeses (0 direeors and corporaie auditors 126 71 L.340
Betirement benefil exponses 1,313 1,065 13,551

18. RESEARCH AND IMEYELOPMENT COSTS
Research and development costs included tn selling, general and administrative expenses amounied to ¥98
million {$1.042 thousand) and ¥92 million for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2011, respectively,

1% OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO5S}
The reclassification adjustment and the related income tax eifecis allocated (0 each componend of other
comprehensive loss for the years cnded March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as fllows;

Thousands of

Millions of yen .5, dollars
L _ 013 2 2013
Met unteslized holdmg gain on ofher securities:
L.nrealized holding loss srising during the vear ¥ 19 ¥ 31 % 202
Beclassdicalinn adjuswmend lor gaindoss redlised in ned ineemye = — —
RBefore tax amount 10 (3 202
oz hemefit (7 I (74}
Mer-of-ran amount o 12 0 128
Foreign currency translation adpustments:
Fuseigr currney trens fation adiustcnenes aris ing during che vear 208 {170 2212
Keclussibrcativa adjwstrnent Jor gainloss realized innet ingome — — —
Bedore tax amoun 208 (1707 2212
Tax benueiit 0} » o o
Met-of-tax amount Lt ] RES 2.212
Tolal otber comprehensive income {loss) ¥ 22l ¥ ey 50 2330
20, AMOUNTS PER SHARE
Yen L;.5 dollars
R 2013 2012 013
Met income per share Y 130487 ¥ Y .60
et assets per share [,731.20 1,610,318 18.41]

det ineoeme per share s compued based on the net income gvailable for disiribation 1o sharcholders of
common stock and the weighted-average number of shares of common stock autslanding during the vear.
There is no cguity instruments issued that has dilutive eflect on eamings per share.

Amounts per share of net assets are computed based on net asseis available for disiribulion to the
shareholders and the oumber of shares of common stock outstanding at the year end.
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Conditicns of Finaocial instruments

{13 Managemenl policy

The Croup makes short-term deposies oc high-securily linancial insrruments for fund management purposes,
The Group fingnces lunds for capilal expendilure plans mainly through bank leans,

The Group utilizes derivaiive financial instruments 1o bedpe various risks as described in detail below and
does not enter inte derivaiives for trading or speculative parposes,

(21 Financial instruments and risks

The notes and accounts receivable are exposed to credit risk of customers.  Operaling reccivables and
payables denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to foreign currency Muctuation risk.

Markerable and investment secucities, except for shor-term investments, are held for business and capital
alliances with business assnciates, and are exposed to stock market fluctuation risk.

Maturities of notes and accounts pavable are within one year.

Lone-term debt and lease obligations are for financinpg funds for capilal expendiiore and their maximom
maturities are 5 yvears and 5 and half vears after the balance sheet date for the years ended March 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively.  All of the obligations are with fixed inleres! rates and are not exposed to interest
rate risk,

In wrder 10 hedpe the foreign exchange rates floctuation risk associated with the operating receivables and
payables denominated in forgign cureencies, forward foreign exchange conlracts are used.

Hudge accomnting is applied for cerlain derivative transactions.  Please reler to note 2{m}.

{3} Financial instruments risk management

1) Credit risk

To mitigate and quickly capture the collectability issues, the Group repularly monilors customers” eredit
status. and performs due date controls and balance controls for each customer.

When the Group witlizes derivatives or deposils money and purchasaes securitics for cash management
purposes, o miligate the counterparly risk, the counterpanies 1o these ransactions are (inancial institulions
with high credit ratings.

2) Markel risk

The Group comprehends the Toreign curreney flucluation risk by currency and by cnonth, aod 1o miigate
the risk, the CGiroup cnters inlo a2 Tonvard exchange contract for hedginge the cash Tow uciuatien risk
associated with operating reccivables and payables denominated in [oreisn curmencies,

To mitigate the stack market Mluciuanion risk. the Group regularly moenitors a stock price and a business
associate’s financial status, amd continuously considers whether the Group helds the stock,

Derivative transactions cnlered into by the Group are in secordance willy the policies and rules which
provide risk management, approvals, reports and verifications.

3) Liguidity risk

To mitigate the liguidity risk, the Group prepares and updates a funds management plan on a fimely basis,
and maintains an appropriate level ol liguidity which is 1otal of cash and cash egquivalents and unused
commitied lines.

(4] =upplemental explanation regarding fair valoe of inancial Instrements

Fair value of financial instruments are measured based on the quoted market price. i available, or
reasonah|y assessed value if a quoted market price is nol available.  Fair value of financial instruments
which quoted matket price is not available is calculated based on cedain assumptions, and the taic valoe
tipht diffee f different assumptions are used.  1n addition, the contract amaunt of the derivative
transactions described below in note 22, DERIVATIVES does nol represent the market risk of the
derivative Irdnsaclions,

{53y Conccniration of credil risk

ArMarch 31, 2013 and 2012, 37%% and 43% ol operating receivables are receivables Trom a certain major
cuslomer, respeclively.
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Fair value of financial instruments

The cartyving anount on the consolidated balance sheets, Fair value, and differcnees as of March 31, 2003
and 2012 are as follows,

Financial instruments, of which il 15 extremely difficult to measure the fair value, are nol included. (Pleqgse
sce {23 Finansial instuments of which the fair value is extramely difficalt 1o measure'’)

Millions ol yen Thousands of U8, dollars
Camying Carrying
Mareh 30,2013 amount Fair value  Differences  amoun Fair value [ifferences
ABECTE: o
(11 Cash and cash cquivalents ¥ 10935 ¥ 30635 ¥ — £ 328920 % 32R921 % —
(2} Motes and accounts recelvable 93,039 1030 — 985,250 Qe T30 —
(3 Investments securities:

Other securities 124 124 —_ 1,38 [,318 —
Tatad Y I24058 Y 124098 ¥ 0 — 51319490 S1319490 $  —
Liahilities:

{13 Noles and accounts payablue ¥ 36404 ¥ 36404 ¥ — % 3&roTL 03 37071 0% —_—
{2y Short-1erm bank loans S99 599 — 6,360 6165 -
(3} Carrent installments of . .

long-term debt 00 00 — 536 316 —
i4) [.ong-term debt 31,000 3,062 2 .08 LR 2l
Tota] ¥ 40503 ¥ 40505 ¥ 2§ Anas4 § 430675 S 21
Drerivalive transactions ¥ oy 0 ¥ — L 0% 0 s —
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Millions of ven

Camving

March 31, 2012 amount Fair value T[hlferences
AS55Ets:
(1) Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 37586 ¥ 37586 ¥ -
{2} Motes and accounts receivable 73,193 73191 —
{33 Investments securities:

Crther sectirities Qe a4 —
Total ¥ OIeE? ¥ 11079 ¥ —_
Liabilities:

1) Notes and accounts payable ¥ 30321 Y 3032 ¥ —
(2} Short-term bank foans — — —
{.3) Current installments of

iong-terin debt 3,300 3.500 o
{41 L.ong-term debt ACH) S04 4
Total ¥ oo34.321 0¥ 34315 0¥ 4
I32rivalive transactinns ¥ 0% ¥ —

*® Derivative receivables and liabilitics are on net basis,

(17 Fair value measoremen of Dmancial inst ruments

ARE0TS

1Y Cash and cash equivabents

The carrying amount approximates tair valoe because of 1he shon matvrity of these imstrumenis.

23 Motes and accounts receivahle
The carrving amount approxintates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments,

3} Imvesiment securities
The fair value of equity securities i5 calculated by quoted markel price,  Flease see nole 5, INVESTMEN|
SECURITIES for infommalion by category.

lLiahilities:
13 Niotes and accounts payvahle
The carrying amounl approximates tair value because of the shord maturily of these instruments.

23 Short-term bank koans
The carrying amount approximares {air value becawse of the shon maturity of these instrumenis.

3% Currend mstallments of leng-term deb
The camyving amount approximates fair value beeause of the short maturity of these instruments.

4) Long-lerm debt
Fair value of long-term debts is bascd on the present value of future cash Aows discounted using the coment
borrowing rate for similar debt of a comparable maturiny.

Marivative Iransactions:
Plenme see note 22, DERIVATIVES,
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{2} Vinancial instruments of which the fair value is extremely diflicult to measure

Millions of yen

Thousands of
LA, dollars

Inlisted equity sccurilics
Investment in an affiliate

2013 20012 20113
¥ 6z ¥ 2% b 2,786
a0 3,828

(3} Projected future redemption of monetary elaim and secutilics with maturities al March 31, 2013

Millions of yen

Dge within

13ue afier
ohe year
(heaweh

Dwe after
five years

theaugh ken

Due aftey

LTI year Tve years YCArS Ten viears
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 30935 ¥ — — ¥ —
Miotes and accounts receivable PERITLY — — —
¥ 1231974 ¥ — — ¥ —
Thousands of L5, dollars o
Due after Due atter
OTIC YT five vears
Drue within through throwgh wen Dise alier
one year five yroars VLTS 16T wasars
(ash and cash cquivalents £ 3280521 % — 5
Waotes and aceounts receivable Q89 250 —
£ 1318171 % — — 5 —

{43 The annual maturities of the long-term debl and other interest-bearing debt at March 31, 2013

m il licns of ven

[Mae aller e alter MNue after Thue alter

[0 L }'C‘il.r Ewon }-cur.*: I]'.I]'L'I.' ars fv::-ur ¥Ears
I widhin throupgh through through through Ime afte
L YeAar 10 ¥Ears three wears  _four wears live veary five vear
Bhort-term bank loans ¥ 90 ¥ ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Lotig-term deb 300 3,000 - —- -

o __Thousands of L1.5. dollars

1tue atter I ather [ e afler Do wfter

Gt yoar 1w yoars three ¥oArs four years
Diue witlin 1hrough throagh hiraugh ihraugh e alle
N Vedar _bwoyears b vears four vears five vears Tivi voar

Short-icrmm bank loans B 636% % — % b § .

Long-term debt 5,316 —
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22. DERIVATIVES

The Company has entered into forwsrd exchange contracts with major Japanese banks in order to manage
certain risks arising from adverse fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

At March 21, 20013 and 2012, the disclosyre of fair value information fivr derivatives which is not aecouned

for as hedges are as follows:

Millions of yen Therusands of U8, dolkars
Contracs Valuation  Contraci Yaluation
March 31,2013 amaurt Fair value gain amount Fair value gain
Ioreweqrd erchange contracis:
To buy foreign currency:
LS, dellars ¥ I ¥ (0] ¥ {n % 191 % iy &
Total ¥ 18 ¥ @) ¥ 0 $ 19§ R (0)
Millions of yen
Conlract Valualioo
March 31, 2012 amount Fair value gain
Forward exchange contracts:
T buy foreign currency:
L5 dollars Y a7y 20 2
Pound Steriing : L 0
Total L KLV | 2 ¥ i

The Fair value of forwand exchange contracts is computed Based on quates from counterpartics,

23, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s cutstanding common stock was owned by NEC Corporation by 5E.42% and 51 43% at

March 31,2003 and 2012, respectively.

Balances with MEC Corporation au March 51, 2003 and 2012, and related transactions for the vears then

ended are simanized as follows:

Construciion and mamdenance of netwaork
syslem:
Transaclions:
Sales
Halances:
Accounts receivable
Advances received

Purchases ol communication dovice:
Transactions;
Purchiases
Balanges:
Accounts payable

Thousands of

Millions of ven L5 dollars
] R 12 2013
¥ Es0G2 ¥ 707 5 904753
Yoo o349 ¥ 30500 5 366,071
4360 219 4.678
¥ 34763 ¥ 32164 369423
¥ 9913 ¥ 7300 £ 105401
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NEC Ficlding, Ltd i5 a subsidiary of MEC Corporation as at March 31, 2013 and 2012, Balanccs with the
company al bMarch 31, 2013 and 21 2. and related transaclions for the years then ended are summarized as
ol Levawes:

Thousands of

~ Milliens of ven L5 daollars
2013 2012 2013
Construction and maintenance of netwark
systen:
Transactions:
Sales ¥ 1,828 ¥ i1.483 5 19,436
Balances:
Notes recervahle ¥ 200 ¥ 104 % 2127
Accounts receivable 455 344 4,870
Advances received 2 16 12%
Purchases ol commanication device:
Transactions:
Purchases ¥ a7R ¥ 1.13% Y 16,399
Balances:
Arcounts payahle ¥ 28 ¥ 77 £ 3.2

NEC Commmunication Systems, Ltd 15 a subsidiary of MEC Coerpordtion as al Maceh 3102013 and 2012,
Balances with the company al March 31,2013 and 2012, and related transactions for the years then ended
are summarized as follows:

Thousands of
Milligns of vea __L1S dollars
TR 2012 2013
Construction and maintenance of network
sy slem:
Transactions:
Sales Y 3333 ¥ 3350 P 35439
Balances:
Atcounts reccivable ¥ 27 ¥ T80 3 7.730

NEC Engincertng, Ltd is a subsidiary af MEC Corporation as at March 31, 2013 and 2012, Balances with
the company at March 31, 2013 and 2012, and related transactions for 1he vears then eoded are summarized
as follows:

Thousands of

Milliansof yen LIS dollars
ms 2012 2013
Censtriction and maimtenance of network
s_}'slem:
Transactions:
Sales ¥ 1,368 ¥ 1.447 ¥ 14,545
Balances;
Accounis receivahle ¥ 543 ¥ 537 I 5,774
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WNEC Facilities, Ltd is a subsidiary of NEC Corporation as at Mareh 31, 2013 and 2012, Ralanees with the
oy af March 31 2013 and 2012, and related transactions for the years then ended are simmanized as
[ollrws:

Theusards of

hlillions of yen LS. doflars
2013 ol b - TTE
Rental of a buildings:

Transactions:

Lease deposit paviment ¥ 122 ¥ 22 L3 1,297

Lease depesit repayment 130 : 1,382
I3alances:

Lease deposit ¥ 1.582 ¥ 1.55% 3 lag21

M EC Magunus Communications, Lid was a subsidiary of NEC Corporation as at March 51, 2012,
Balances with the company at March 31, 2012, and related transactions for the year then ended are
stunmarized as follows:

Mlillions of
ven
Construction and maintenancs of network
syslem:
Transactions;
Sales ¥ 83
Halances:
Accounls receivable Yy 173

14 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reported segiments of the Company are the husiness imuls for which the Company s able to obiain

respective financial information separately i arder for the Board of Directors 1o condoet periodic

investigation to determine distrihution of management resources and evaluate their business eesulis,
“Enterpriges networks bosiness”, “Carrier networks husiness™ and “*Social infragtructures bosiness™ are the

Compaty™s reported segments.  The Company summarized business sepments which have similar

ecnnnimic features and are based on the operational headguarers by services which are onits for

perfarmance management into the reported segments.

Fanterprises natworks husiness mainly renders Service [ntegration relating o ICT Saluion for enterprises,

The segment renders total office solution which nctudes support for security or envirgrment issues by

using the I'TC, gperation, monitering and providing outsourcing service of the total office solution and

providimg ¢loud services by oaen data center,

Carpier networks husinegss mainly renders Service nlegration relating to ICT Foundation for carriers.  The

seganent renders 51 services relating 1o large-scale and wide-range 120 Foundation and data center of

carrier grade and operation and manitoting service of the 51 services,

Social infrastraciures business mainly cenders Seevice Tategration relating (o %] services of 10T

lofrastracturs for govermments or pubhic-inkerest corpurations (broadcasters, electric companies, ele.) and

related operation and momiloring service, and provides consiruction of communication,

Sepment sales, income, assels and ofhers are caleulated by accaunting imethods similar ta thase employved 1o

prepare the aceompany ing comsoelidaed financial stalements.
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The reported segment information fer the Company and its consolidaled subsidiaries for the years ended

March 31, 20013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

March 31, 2003

Sales:
(L} Sates to third parties ¥
(23 Intersepment sales

Tatal ¥
Sepment income ¥
Sepment assels ¥
hbers:
[epreciation and
amorlizalion ¥
Purchases of property

and equipment, and
intangible assets
Investments in an
alfiliale aecountod
for by the equity
method

March 31,2013

Sales:
{13 Sales (o third parties 5
(2) Intersepiment sales

Total 3
Sepment income 5
Sepgment assels 5
Cihers:
Depreciation and
amuattization £

Purchases of property
and equipment, and
inlangble assels
Investoments in an
affitiate accounted
fiar by the equity
method

Annual Report 2013

Millions of ven

Tmlerprise Carrier 'Smm
neEwoThs nelwaorks  inframedctures (Cihers Adpustrcars Total
85338 ¥ 54,732 ¥ 30935 ¥ 14,709 ¥ — ¥ 23571A
B5338 ¥ 34732 ¥ 30035 ¥ 14709 ¥ — ¥ 235706
7,368 ¥ 6,306 ¥ 6.162 ¥ ws ¥ (7750 ¥ 12,483
33620 ¥ Z1EB24 ¥ 31,357 ¥ 10,235 ¥ 51,256 ¥ 6B 205
Asg ¥ 1844 ¥ 109 ¥ ¥ 341 ¥ 2,164
276 115 149 357 1,934 3,533
300 -— - 360
Thowsamds af VLA, dallars o
Enterprise Carrier <oeal
nelworks nctwoTks wabeanicsiare, Others Al armeans Total
a7 368 B SR1946 3 60553 F 0 156,396 5 — 5 7,506,284
Q07,168 5 SR1046 5 E60553 5 1563948 5 S 2306284
78541 F a7049 5 65518 % 420 % #2414y F 132 127
357465 F 2327 F s4a061 % JOREXS 3 544587 5 1.7HY.42)
9123 * 156 ¥ 159 ¥ 744 5 10005 § 23,009
10377 1,223 1,584 3,790 20,504 37,505
3,828 — — — — 3,528



Millions of yen

Fntorprise Carrier ool
o Mareh3i, 2002 netwaorks networks  inirasiructures Ochers Adjustmens Total
Sales:
{1} Salestathird parties ¥ 80,722 ¥ 46716 ¥  A4518 ¥ 12700 ¥ — ¥ 204,658
{2) Intersegoment sales - - = — — -
Tatal Y8072 ¥ 46716 ¥ 64518 ¥ 12700 ¥ — ¥ 204658
Segment income ¥ 7,594 ¥ 4.94] ¥ 1576 ¥ NI Y (6aTE) ¥ 9,747
Sepmenl a8501s ¥ o024 ¥ 170 ¥ Zae07 ¥ I00Te ¥ 56785 ¥ 149707
Crhers:
Depreciation and
amortization ¥ 772 ¥ 220 ¥ 95 ¥ 136 ¥ 76 ¥ 1241
Furchases of property
and equipment, and
intangible assets 1,338 190 145 127 1.429 3,232
Motes: 1. "Onhers" includes Toyo Networks & System Inlegration Co.. EAd, and purchases of
information and telecommunications equipment, ete.. which are ou included in reportad

SERMENLS.

mAdjustments” of ¥7.751 million (382,414 thowsand) and ¥6.67% million in segment

income for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively are mainly

administrative operation expunses.,

3 mAdjuaments” of ¥51,256 million (544,987 thousand} and ¥56.785 million in sepment
assets at March 31, 2013 amt 2012, respeetively mainly consist of sorplus funds (cash
and deposits), land. Jong-term deposits and asseta eelating (o the administemive
operations of the parenl company.

4, Segment income is adjusted with operating income in the consolidated stadements of
income.

5. "Depreciation and amortization” and "Purchases of properly and equipment, and
inlangible assets™ include fong-lerm propaid expenses and s amonization.

I

Related information
Related scpment information for the vears ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows;
(L} Information by products and services

Flease refer w the reponed segment information.

(21 Geopraphical information
1} Sales
Disclosures are omitted because sales 10 Japanese custamer are over 90% of sales in the consolidated
statemments of income.

23 Property and equipment

Disclosures ane omilled because property and equipmend located in Japan arc over 90% of property and
equipmiend in the consalidated balance sheets,
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{1} Information by major custemers
Thousands of

Millions of ven LS. dollars
2013 012 2013
Cusiomur name:
MEC Corporation
Sales ¥ 26,079 ¥ 78,594 5 913,247

Above sales are relared (o the “Enterprise nelworks™ segment. “Carrier networks” segment and “Social
infrastructures™ segment.

Information of impairment loss on fixed assets by reported segments for the vears ended March 31,
2013 and 2012

Millions of yen
Enlcrprisc Carier Saciad
March 51, 2013 networks networks  infrustruciures thers i pusteTienes Total

Impairment loss ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — f 165 ¥ — ¥ L65
Thousands af 175, dallars

ntemprise Carriar Cocial
March 31 2013 nelworks networks  nfrasoruciunes CHhers _Aadjusmrents Tatal

Impainment loss, £ — & — & — & 1754 & — & | 754
o applicable for the year ended March 31, 2012
Infermation of amorgaation of goodwill and balances aof gondwill hy reparted regments as of and

for the vears chded March 31, 2013 and 2012
_Millions of yen _

Entcrpriss Caricr enal
March 31, 2013 nerworks aciworks  nfrastructores Others Adjusimenls Total
Amorization of goedwill ¥ 21 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ a00¥ — ¥ gl
Balunces as of pomlwill EhY:] — — 722 — 1.080
Thousands of .5, dollars
Enterprize Camier Social
March 31, 2013 networks nelworks miTisAryigres Jthers Aalpuimerigmg ‘Toal
Ammortization of poodwilt § a5 5 — % — % Hig & — & 861
Balances as ol goedwil| 3,406 — — 16T — 11,483

e ~ Millions ol yen o

Entcrprise Camier gocial
March 31, 2012 networks _metworks wdrasirwres Others  adusmens | Totd
Amortization of goodwill ¥ a1 ¥ . ¥ ¥ &0 ¥ Y ]
Batances as of goodwill 1Ty —_ — TR - 1,161

Negative goodwill imcurred by reporied segménts for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
MNut applicable,
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15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company resolved at the Beoard of Dicectors meeting held on February 13, 2013 1o succeed the system
engineering busicess of NEC Mobiling Lt through a simplified absorption-lype corporale split.  The
systemn engineering busioess comprised area surveys, area designing and optimization, installation works,
testing and mainicnance related to the mobile base stations.  The Company enlered into a corporate split
apreement with NEC Mopbiling Ltd. on February 13, 2013 and the corporale split was consammated o9
April 1, 2013,

1. Owtline of the corporate split

(1} Corporale split date

April 1.2013

Avs this corporate split meets the provisions regarding a simplified absomption-type corporale splic stipulated
vouer Arlicle 796, Paragraph 3 and Article 784, Paragraph of the Companies At of Japan for the Company

and NEC Mobiling Lid.. respectively, the corpotale split does not require either company for @ resolution of
the shareholders” mesting.,

(2] Corporate splil methoed
Under this corporate split the Company is the steceeding company and NEC Mobiliog Lid. is the sphirting
COTOPAnNY.

{3y Corperte split abjectives

The Company’s advantage in ihe mobile base stations business is a construction and NEC Muobiling Lid's
advantage in the base slations business 15 an upper process such as area swrveys, ared designing and
optimizatien and maintenance service.  Theough the corporate split, buman resmerce. techmology and
knowhew in the mohile base stations husiness is concentraled and value chain is reinforced, and the
Company aims to farther expand s business by sirenpthening comprehensive services for a1l netwarks
ron mobile hase stations to backbane networks.

2. Outline of the applicd accounting method

‘This corporate split was accounted for as a “wransaclion under common coneol™ in aceordance with the
"Accounting Standards for Business Combinations™ (ASE] Statement Mo, 21, December 26, 2008%) and the
"Cruidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Slandard for Bosingss
Divestures™ (A5B) Guidance Mo, 10, December 26, 20087,
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i
Independent Auditor's Heport

To the Board of Dhirectors of NEC et orhs & Sasten Iodegration Coeporation:

We have audited the aceompanying coensolidated fmancial stalements of WEC Networks & Sasterm Indgpration
Corporation, and its consolidated subsidiarics © which comprise the consolidated balance shevts as an March 31,
2013 and 2012 and the consolidated statements of meome. statements of comprehensive meome, stilvments

ol chames monet assets and statements of cash flows for the years then ended © and a sammary of signilicant
accountiag policics and other cxplanatory information.

Manapement's Risponsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statemencs

Management is responsible For the preparativn amd fair presgration of these consalilated Financial staigients
i1 accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for sechointemal controed as
management determines is neeessary 10 enable the preparstion of censodidaed Tinancizl statemuents that are
frec fram material misstatements. whether doe 1o fraud or cror.

Auditnr™s Responsibilicy

{duar eesponisibiliny is to oxpress an optnion on these consolidated financial statements hased on our aadis.
W conductcd aue andis i aceardance with auditing standards generally aceepted in fapan. Those standands
regpuine that we conply with ethical regquirements and plan aed pertom the aodil to obtain reasonable
assiranes alwan whather the comwdlidated Mnancial stateents age free from material misstatement.

Araudit invedves periurming procedures 1w obilaio audit evidence aboul e amounts and disclosoees in the
consofidatzl financial saacments. Fhe peocadures seleeted depend on our judpement, including the
assessment o the risks of materiab missiatement of the sonselidated nangial siaiments, s hetbee due o raud
or error, I making those sk assessments, we consider intemial comtrel relesvand e the entics s proparcation
and lair presentation ol the consulidated linancial stibements i order i design anlit procedares than are
appropriate in the circumstmees. while the objeetive o the firancial staivment aedin iz ped for the purpose ol
cxpressing anm opinion on the eftectiveness of the entins internal contresl, An aedit alse inghuldes evaluating
the appropristencss of gecounting policics used and the reascnablencss ol accounting ex1imanes made by
manapemend. as well as cvaluating the cverall presentation of the consalidated linangial staements,

We belicy o that the audit evidenee we bave obained is suflicien and appropriate wo provide a basis for our
audit epinion.

(pinian

I our ppipion, the consalidated fnancial siatements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
persition af MO Merwurks & Sastem Infegeation §omoration amd e cotsolidated subsidiaries as at March 31,
204 3 and 2012, ol their inancial perlormance ansd csh lows for the years then ended i accomdance witl
accounting principles penerally secepled in Japm,

Convenience Translation
The VLS. dollar amounts in the aecompany g consolidatled fmancial statements with respect 10 the year ended
March 31, 2003 are presented solely for convenience. Qur audit also included the translation of yen amounts

innler V1S clallar aononn ts and, i our opsinion, sueh translation has been made on the basis deseribed in Mote 3
o the comsolicated Tivancial statcancns.

KPrg AZsA LLcC

June 25,2013
Tokyo Japan
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NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

GIObaI Network (As of March 31, 2013)

Head Office

2-6-1 Koraku, Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo 112-8560, Japan

Tel:  +81-3-6699-7000
Fax: +81-3-6699-7405

Major Domestic Regional Offices

Higashinihon, Nakanihon, Kansai, Nishinihon, Hokkaido, Tohoku, Shin-etsu,
Kitakanto, Kanagawa, Chubu, Shizuoka, Hokuriku, Keiji, Kobe, Chugoku,

Shikoku, Kyushu
Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Toyo Networks & System

Integration Co., Ltd.

Head office: Kanagawa, Japan

Established: May 2005

Capitalization: ¥400 million

Voting rights: 100.0%

Subsidiaries: Toyo Alphanet Co., Ltd.
TNSi Europe GmbH

Nichiwa Co.

Head office: Hyogo, Japan
Established: January 1953
Capitalization: ¥50 million
Voting rights: 100.0%

Q&A Corporation

Head office:  Tokyo, Japan
Established: July 1997
Capitalization: ¥897 million
Voting rights: 55.9%

Subsidiaries: DAICHI AD SYSTEM Co., Ltd.

Net Life Partner
Corporation (NLP)
ARKPOWER Co., Ltd.

NEC Networks & System Integration
Engineering, Ltd.

Head office:  Tokyo, Japan
Established: October 1992
Capitalization: ¥50 million

Voting rights: 100.0%

NEC Networks & System Integration
Services, Ltd.

Head office:  Tokyo, Japan
Established: July 1988

Capitalization: ¥60 million

Voting rights: 100.0%
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NESIC Ascerent, Ltd.
Head office:  Tokyo, Japan
Established: June 1951
Capitalization: ¥20 million
Voting rights: 100.0%

NESIC BRASIL S/A
Head office:  Sao Paulo, Brazil
Established: November 1976
Voting rights: 87.4%

NESIC (Thailand) Ltd.

Head office:  Bangkok, Thailand
Established: March 1991
Voting rights: 49.0%

NESIC PHILIPPINES, Inc.
Head office:  Manila, Philippines
Established:  April 1991

Voting rights: 100.0%

NESIC (GUANGZHOU) Co., Ltd.
Head office:  Guangzhou, China
Established: August 1998
Voting rights: 100.0%

Networks & System Integration
Saudi Arabia Co. Ltd.

Head office:  Al-Khobar, Saudi Arabia
Established:  April 2006

Voting rights: 95.0%

Certifications

1S09001: 2008

Certificate No. :

1S014001: 2004

Certificate No. :

JQA-0471

JQA-EM0640

ISO/IEC27001: 2005

Certificate No. :
Organization :

Certificate No. :

Organization :

Certificate No. :

Organization :

Certificate No. :

Organization :

Certificate No. :

Organization :

Certificate No. :
Organization :

C03J0025

Office Service Division

(SI & Services Operations Unit)
(Security Control Center)
JQA-IM0O190

Office Service Division

(Sl & Services Operations Unit)
(Service Infrastructure

Construction Department)

(Network Service & Operation
Department)

JQA-IM0351

Service Infrastructure Division

(Sl & Services Operations Unit)

(ICT Help Desk Service Department)
(Remote Operation Service Department)
BSKS0027

Public Infrastructure Systems
Division (Network Infrastructures
Operation Unit) *as of March 31, 2013
JQA-IM1086

Fire & Disaster Prevention

Systems Division

(Network Infrastructures Operation Unit)
JQA-IM1013

Kansai 1st Service Center

(Regional Operations Unit)

Kansai 2nd Service Center
(Regional Operations Unit)

Kansai SI Department

(Regional Operations Unit)

*as of March 31, 2013

ISO/IEC 20000-1:2011

Certificate No. :

Organization :

Privacy Mark
Certificate No. :

JQA-IT0037

Office Service Division
Customer Engineering Division
Service Infrastructure Division
(SI & Services Operations Unit)

21000053

BS25999-2: 2007

(Business Continuity Management System)

Certificate No. :

Certified Organization :

BCMS539922
NEC Group

Scope of the Company’s Certification:

Operation and Maintenance Business

(Unified Communication Network in Tokyo)

Carrier Operation and Maintenance Business




NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation

Investor Information ..oz 20

Corporate Data Major Shareholders
Corparate Name NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation Number of Percentage of
Shares Held Total Shares
Established December 1, 1953 Name of Shareholder (Thousands) Outstanding 2
(registered as a stock company on November 26, 1953) ]
NEC Corporation 19,106 38.42%
Number of Employees 4,530 (Non-consolidated) J Trustee Seni Bank Ltd.- 6.400 12.87%
6,024 (Consolidated) apan frusiee Services Bank, Ld. - : 8%
(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited beneficiary trust
URL http://www.nesic.co.jp/english/ account, NEC Corporation retirement benefit trust account)
Listing Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 3,502 7.04%
Ticker Code 1973 The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 1,892 3.81%
Fiscal Year April 1 - March 31 Sumitomo Realty & Development Co., Ltd. 1,200 2.41%
Annual meeting held in June
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account 9) 928 1.87%
Common Stock Authorized 100,000,000 shares
Employees' Stock Ownership Plan 724 1.46%
Issued 49,773,807 shares
CMBL S . A. Re Mutual Funds 685 1.38%
Number of Shareholders 9,272
Mellon Bank, N.A. As Agent For Its Client Mellon Omnibus 665 1.34%
Transfer Agent Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited US Pension
1-4-1, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan
The Chase Manhattan Bank , N.A. London Secs Lending 630 1.27%
Independent Auditors KPMG AZSA & Co. Omnibus Account
Composition of Shareholders Notes

1 Shares held by Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited beneficiary trust account, NEC Corporation retirement benefit trust
account) give NEC Corporation material voting rights because NEC Corporation

41 O 4% has contributed shares of the Company to its retirement benefit trust.
0 ' The percentage of material voting rights held by NEC Corporation as of March 31,
0.54% = 2013 was 51.42%.
T 2 The percentage of total shares outstanding is calculated based on the number of
shares excluding treasury stock (48,219 shares).
Securities  Individuals Foreign Financial Other domestic
companies and others  investors, etc institutions companies

Monthly Stock Price Range

Yen Hll Blue: Opening Price > Closing Price [ White: Closing Price > Opening Price

2,000 — High

U T Opening
il {800 ! & ' N jo Closing
1,200 j’ g7 e R .'-*?'t'ai_n o
' 4 tog.U"Foreay so+e.,  g*TTTTRR"

| b High
G ! Closing
400 Opening
Low

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Monthly Trading Volume

Thousand of shares

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000
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